
Monday, February 9, 2015 AGENDA Page 1 

 

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2015 

2:30 P.M. 

6th Floor Conference Room, 2180 Milvia Street 
Committee Members:  

Mayor Bates, Councilmembers Linda Maio and Susan Wengraf 
(Alternate: Councilmember Anderson) 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Roll Call 

2. Public Comment  

3. Approval of Minutes: January 26, 2015 

4. Review and Approve draft agendas: 
a. 2/24/15 – 5:30 p.m. Special City Council Meeting  
b. 2/24/15 – 7:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

1. Referred items 
c. Adjournments in memory of -  

5. Council Items: 
a. Council Worksessions 
b. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee  
c. Land Use Calendar 

6. Adjournment – next meeting Monday, February 23, 2015 



Monday, February 9, 2015 AGENDA Page 2 

Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 

Rules of Procedure Resolution No. 66,912-N.S., Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

The City Clerk shall bring any reports submitted as Time Critical to the meeting of the Agenda Committee.  
If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for 
which the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

This is a meeting of the Berkeley City Council Agenda Committee. Since a quorum of the Berkeley City 
Council may actually be present to discuss matters with the Council Agenda Committee, this meeting is 
being noticed as a special meeting of the Berkeley City Council as well as a Council Agenda Committee 
meeting. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.  After the deadline for submission, residents must provide 10 copies of written communications 
to the City Clerk at the time of the meeting. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any 
member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Mark Numainville, CMC, City Clerk, 981-6900. 
 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials. Please help the City respect these needs. 

 

 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as 
well as on the City’s website, on February 5, 2015. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 

 
 

 

 



Monday, January 26, 2015 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, JANUARY 26, 2015 

2:30 P.M. 

6th Floor Conference Room, 2180 Milvia Street 
Committee Members:  

Mayor Bates, Councilmembers Linda Maio and Susan Wengraf 
(Alternate: Councilmember Anderson) 

 
1. Roll Call: 2:30 p.m. All present. 

2. Public Comment: 0 speakers.  

3. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to approve the Minutes of January 12, 2015 

4. Review and Approve draft agendas: 
a. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to approve the agenda of the 2/10/15 – 5:30 p.m. 

Special City Council Meeting  
b. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to approve the agenda of the 2/10/15 – 7:00 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting revised to reflect the following: 
 Item 4 Refer $80,000 to the FY 2015/2016 Budget process for Council Personnel 

Budget (Moore) – Item Removed from the Agenda. 

 Item 5 Support the Creation of Financial Services by the United States Post Office 
(Arreguin and Maio) – Councilmember Wengraf added as a co-sponsor. 

1. Referred items - None 
c. Adjournments in memory of: 

1. Rita Bowes Perry 
2. Dan Wall 

5. Council Items: 
a. Council Worksessions 
b. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee  
c. Land Use Calendar 

6. Adjourned at 2:36 p.m. 
 

 
Mark Numainville, CMC, City Clerk 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
3



 



 
D R AF T  P R O CLAM AT I O N  

C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE  
B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L   

In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 
session as follows: 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2015 
5:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers – 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way  
TOM BATES, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – LINDA MAIO  DISTRICT 5 – LAURIE CAPITELLI 
DISTRICT 2 – DARRYL MOORE  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – MAX ANDERSON  DISTRICT 7 – KRISS WORTHINGTON 
DISTRICT 4 – JESSE ARREGUIN DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call: 

Worksession: 

1. Projections of Future Liabilities 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, 981-7000 

2. FY 2015 Mid-Year Budget Update 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, 981-7000 

Public Comment – Items on this agenda only 

Adjournment 
I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
    and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
    affixed on this 11th day of February, 2015. 

     
    Tom Bates, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4a



ATTEST: 

 
Date:  2/11/15 
Mark Numainville, CMC, City Clerk 
 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny an appeal, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.6 and Government Code Section 65009(c)(1)(E), no lawsuit challenging a City 
decision to deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be filed and served on the City 
more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  Any 
lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City 
Council decision to approve or deny a Zoning Adjustments Board decision, the issues and evidence will 
be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the 
close of the last public hearing on the project. 

 
Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33), via Internet 

accessible video stream at http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/video and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
 Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/CityCouncil. 

Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, 
names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to the City Council, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-
mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via 
U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the City 
Clerk at 981-6908 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/CityCouncil 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 
City Clerk Department Libraries: 
2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Tel:  510-981-6900 Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 
TDD:  510-981-6903 West Branch – 1125 University 
Fax:  510-981-6901 North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 
Email:  clerk@CityofBerkeley.info South Branch – 1901 Russell 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.  

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/video
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CityCouncil
mailto:clerk@cityofberkely.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CityCouncil


rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b







Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

6. Contract: TranSystems, Inc. for Consultant Support Services for the South 
Cove Public Access Staging Area Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract and any amendments with TranSystems, Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $75,955 for consultant support services for the construction 
phase of the South Cove Public Access Staging Area Project. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700 

7. Grant:  California Parks and Recreation Department, Division of Boating and 
Waterways – South Cove West Parking Lot Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to submit a grant application for $500,000 to the California Parks and 
Recreation Department, Division of Boating and Waterways for the South Cove 
West Parking Lot Project pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Harbors and 
Watercraft Revolving Fund program, and authorizing the implementation of the 
projects and appropriation of funding for related expenses, subject to securing the 
grant. 
Financial Implications: $500,000 (Revenue) 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700 

8. License Agreement No 2:  Berkeley Partners for Parks – Santa Fe Right-of-Way 
- South Berkeley Bioremediation Garden Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
second license agreement with Berkeley Partners for Parks for a new two year 
period to conduct the South Berkeley Bioremediation Garden Project on the Santa 
Fe Right-of-Way. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700 

9. Contract: Mosto Construction for Sanitary Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation FY 
2015 Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1.  Approving the plans and specifications 
for the Sanitary Sewer Manhole Rehabilitation FY 2015 Project, 15-10903-C, located 
at various locations within the City; 2.  Accepting the bid of Mosto Construction, the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and 3.  Authorizing the execution of a 
contract and any amendments, extensions or other change orders until completion 
of the project in accordance with the approved plans and specifications, in an 
amount not to exceed $225,600. 
Financial Implications: Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund - $225,600 
Contact: Andrew Clough, Public Works, 981-6300 



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

10. Contract: Grade Tech, Inc. for FY 2015 Storm Drainage Improvements Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution: 1.  Approving plans and specifications for 
the FY 2015 Storm Drainage Improvement Project, Specification No. 15-10908-C;  
2.  Accepting the bid of Grade Tech, Inc. as the lowest responsive and responsible 
bidder; and  3.  Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any 
amendments, extensions or other change orders until completion of the project in 
accordance with the approved plans and specifications in an amount not to exceed 
$563,466. 
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $563,466 
Contact: Andrew Clough, Public Works, 981-6300 

11. Contract: Skeo Solutions for Measure M Outreach Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any amendments with Skeo Solutions for a term of 4 years for an 
amount not to exceed $125,000 for Measure M outreach services. 
Financial Implications: Measure M Fund - $125,000 
Contact: Andrew Clough, Public Works, 981-6300

Council Consent Items 

12. Official City Sponsor of Berkeley High School All-Class Reunion 
From: Mayor Bates and Councilmember Moore 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving City sponsorship of the Berkeley 
High School All-Class Reunion and direct staff to identify funding to cover some of 
the costs associated with the event. 
Financial Implications: Unknown 
Contact: Tom Bates, Mayor, 981-7100 

13. Strengthening Proposed Crude By Rail Safety Regulations 
From: Councilmember Maio 
Recommendation: Send a letter to U.S. Transportation Secretary Foxx urging the 
strengthening of proposed crude by rail safety regulations. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110 

14. Referral to CEAC Regarding Cigarette Butt Litter 
From: Councilmember Maio 
Recommendation: Request that the Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission explore ways to invest in public outreach and take steps to ensure 
compliance with Berkeley's existing outdoor smoking ban in order to stem the tide of 
cigarette butts flowing from our streets into the Bay. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110 



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

15. Declaring Mondays to be "Meatless Mondays" in the City of Berkeley 
From: Councilmember Anderson 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution declaring Mondays to be "Meatless 
Mondays" in the City of Berkeley since the city is committed to the well-being and 
good health of its citizens and dedicated to the preservation of the environment and 
natural resources. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Max Anderson, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130 

16. Phase II: Implementation of City of Berkeley: Review of Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Top-Line Report 
From: Councilmembers Anderson and Moore 
Recommendation: Consider implementing the recommendations in the City of 
Berkeley: Review of Personnel Policies and Procedures Top-Line Report: a) 
Department Audits; b) Inventory of EEO Complaints; c) Whistle Blowing Policy; d) 
Applicant and Employee Reporting; e) Nepotism Policy; f) Additional Staffing Needs 
of the Human Resources and EEO Departments; g) Improvements of 
Communication Methods; and h) Revisions of the Personnel Rules. 
Financial Implications: To be determined 
Contact: Max Anderson, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130 

17. City Co-Sponsorship of the Persian New Year Festival 
From: Councilmember Arreguin 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving city co-sponsorship of the Persian 
New Year Festival that will take place on Tuesday, March 17, 2015. 
Financial Implications: Unknown 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember, District 4, 981-7140 

18. Community Emergency Response Training for Multi-unit Residential Buildings 
and Emergency Cache Program Tailored to the Needs of Large Multi-unit 
Residential Buildings 
From: Councilmembers Capitelli, Arreguin, and Droste 
Recommendation: Refer to the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, the Housing 
Advisory Commission, and the Berkeley Fire Department Office of Emergency 
Services to design a pilot Community Emergency Response Training curriculum 
specifically for multi-unit residential buildings and to design an emergency cache 
program tailored to the needs of large multi-unit residential buildings as outlined in 
the background material below. Both proposed pilots should be evaluated after 2 
years. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Laurie Capitelli, Councilmember, District 5, 981-7150 



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

19. Urging California Elected Officials to Reform Proposition 13 and Close the 
Commercial Property Loophole 
From: Councilmember Wengraf 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution urging California elected officials to reform 
Proposition 13 and close the commercial property loophole and send copies of the 
signed resolution to the appropriate government representatives, including 
Assemblymember Thurmond, Senator Loni Hancock, Congressmember Barbara 
Lee, US Senator Dianne Feinstein, US Senator Barbara Boxer. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160 

20. Business License Tax Renewal Procedure 
From: Councilmember Droste 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to draft an amendment to the 
Berkeley Municipal Code Title 9 Chapter 9.04.065 to grant a grace period for 
enforcement of business license requirements for contractors seeking building 
permits through March 31 of each year, as long as the contractor had an active 
business license the previous year. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, 981-7180 

Action Calendar 

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up.  Where an 
item was moved from the Consent Calendar to Action no speaker who has already spoken on that item 
would be entitled to speak to that item again. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium to determine the 
number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to 
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.  The Presiding Officer 
may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each 
side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

 



Action Calendar – New Business 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

21. Recommendation to Replace the Residential and Commercial Energy 
Conservation Ordinances (RECO and CECO) with the Building Energy Saving 
Ordinance 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance repealing the Residential and Commercial 
Energy Conservation Ordinances (RECO and CECO), BMC Chapters 19.16 and 
19.72, and adding the revised Building Energy Saving Ordinance, BMC Chapter 
19.81. 
2. Direct the City Manager to identify funding sources that could provide incentives 
to encourage energy efficiency improvements in residential buildings 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Eric Angstadt, Planning and Development, 981-7400 

22. Establishing a Two Year Moratorium on Drones in Berkeley 
From: Peace and Justice Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution adopting a two year moratorium on drones 
in Berkeley. 
Financial Implications: Unknown 
Contact: Eric Brenman, Commission Secretary, 981-5400 

Information Reports 

23. Update: Citywide Expansion of Residential Preferential Parking 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Andrew Clough, Public Works, 981-6300 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda –  

Adjournment 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 
Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/video and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 

 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/video
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact 
information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. 
Please contact the City Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on 
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

City Clerk Department Libraries: 
2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Tel:  510-981-6900 Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 
TDD:  510-981-6903 West Branch – 1125 University 
Fax:  510-981-6901 North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 
Email:  clerk@cityofberkeley.info South Branch – 1901 Russell 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6346(V) or 981-7075 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. 
 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials.  Please help the City respect these needs. 
 

 
 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 



 
Office of the Mayor 
Mayor Tom Bates  

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7100 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7199 
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info   

CONSENT CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

To:  Honorable Members of the City Council 

From:  Mayor Tom Bates and Councilmember Darryl Moore 

Subject: Official City Sponsor of Berkeley High School All-Class Reunion  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution approving City sponsorship of the Berkeley High School All-Class 
Reunion and direct staff to identify funding to cover some of the costs associated with 
the event.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Unknown 

BACKGROUND 
The Berkeley High School All-Class Reunion is a chance for all past graduates from 
Berkeley High School to get together and reconnect. This year the event will be in San 
Pablo Park on August 22, 2015. 
 
This year, the committee is planning to have a health fair, more local vendor booths, 
food and beverages, arts & crafts, a children’s play area and live music. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Mayor Tom Bates  510-981-7100 

Attachments:  
1: Resolution 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.12



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S. 
 

BERKELEY HIGH SCHOOL ALL CLASS REUNION PICNIC 
 
WHEREAS, Berkeley High School All Class Reunion Picnic will be held on Saturday 
August 22, 2015 at San Pablo Park in Berkeley; and 
 
WHEREAS, this is the 3rd year the committee has organized this event; and 
 
WHEREAS, this year, the committee is planning to have a health fair, more local vendor 
booths, food and beverages, arts & crafts, a children’s play area and live music; and 
 
WHEREAS, the BHS All Class Reunion Committee is a group of alumni volunteers 
looking to partner with the City of Berkeley to continue the fostering of relationships 
among all BHS alumni.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council approves City sponsorship of the Berkeley High School All-Class Reunion and 
direct staff to identify funding to cover some of the costs associated with the event. 



  CONSENT CALENDAR 
CITY COUNCIL  February 24, 2015 
  Linda Maio 

lmaio@cityofberkeley.info · 510.981.7110 · cityofberkeley.info/lindamaio 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Councilmember Linda Maio 
 
SUBJECT: Strengthening Proposed Crude By Rail Safety Regulations 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Send a letter (attached) to U.S. Transportation Secretary Foxx urging the strengthening 
of proposed crude by rail safety regulations. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Secretary Foxx has stated that he wants to hear about the direct impacts and costs to 
communities of increased crude by rail transport under the proposed rule. 
 
Importantly, the DOT needs to hear from local elected officials and municipalities who 
are directly impacted by hazardous crude rail transport. The agency is hearing from the 
industry regularly about the rules and how it must weaken further an already weak 
proposed rule. The single most important thing the agency can do to improve safety for 
communities is to get the DOT111 tank cars off the rails immediately. The proposed 
rule, which begins tank car phase out in October 2017 and extends through 2020, is not 
fast enough, especially because the agency itself estimates 15 mainline accidents to 
spill crude each year and at least one Lac Megantic scale disaster every two years 
while existing infrastructure remains in place. The Federal Government can and should 
require an immediate ban on these tank cars. The industry can certainly build enough 
new, safer tank cars to replace the existing DOT 111 fleet immediately but it doesn't 
want to because it has plans to double the size of its crude rail tank car fleet in the 
coming years to meet crude production growth. We cannot let the Federal Government 
give in to industry demands to grow their fleet before protecting public health and safety. 
 
The letter copies several officials engaged in the rulemaking at the DOT who have the 
same address as the Secretary. We are also aware that the proposed rule will be going 
to the White House Office of Management and Budget imminently, and this letter may 
be updated and sent to the White House OMB as well. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Minimal. 
 
CONTACT:  
Councilmember Linda Maio, District 1, 510-981-7110 
 
Attachment 

1. Letter 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.13



  

2 
 

February 24, 2015 
 
Secretary Anthony Foxx 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE  
Washington, DC 20590 
 
Dear Secretary Foxx, 

As the Berkeley City Council, we write to you to convey our deep concern over 
increased crude by rail transport through our community and the need for strong safety 
regulations to ensure that the health, safety, and property of our constituents and the health of 
our local economy and treasured natural landscapes are adequately protected. We applaud 
your initiative in proposing the Enhanced Tank Car Standards and Operational Controls for High 
Hazard Flammable Trains and taking important steps to improve crude by rail safety in light of 
recent increases in rail accidents involving crude spills, fires and explosions that have 
devastated communities and waterways, and have left the victims, in many cases, to shoulder 
the costs of damages. However, we fear that with increased crude by rail traffic through our 
community and at least three to seven year delays in replacing or retrofitting the oldest, most 
unsafe tank cars that Berkeley will become another victim of this rampantly growing industry.  

Based on our comments below, we respectfully request that you strengthen the 
proposed rule by (1) requiring an immediate ban on the use of DOT 111 tank cars for all crude 
and ethanol service and (2) requiring that railroads notify states, local governments and the 
public of the numbers and routes of trains carrying crude oil in each state, the nature, type and 
volume of crude and ethanol carried, and provide emergency preparedness information, 
including comprehensive oil spill response plans to local officials and emergency responders.  

Increased crude by rail traffic puts our community at great risk. Much of our residential 
population lives along the rail line. We have large apartment buildings, neighborhoods of single-
family homes, a popular shopping district, and more residential projects in the works directly 
next to the train. An accident of even a minor scale would have devastating consequences in 
terms of potential loss of life and to our local economy.  

I. The Surge in Crude by Rail Disasters Calls for a Strong Regulatory Response 
to Protect Public Health and Safety 

Since 1991, the National Transportation Safety Board has warned that DOT 111 tank 
cars shipping flammable liquids “create an unacceptable public risk” and that “the heads and 
shells of DOT 111 tank cars … can almost always be expected to breach in derailments that 
involve pileups or multiple car-to-car impacts”.1  DOT 111 tank cars puncture and spill oil in 
derailments two or more times as often as the tank cars that have been built since 2011. 
Depending on the option, the proposed new tank car standards would reduce accident severity 
by 40-51%.2 The Department of Transportation’s analysis in the proposed rule projects that 15 
mainline rail accidents will spill oil every year if the existing fleet of tank cars remains in place, 
with the possibility of at least one disaster on the scale of Lac Megantic or larger every two 
years.1, 3 Indeed, immediate removal of hazardous tank cars from the rails is the most important 
action that can be taken in this rulemaking. 

The Department of Transportation has a statutory obligation that prioritizes protection of 
public health and the environment in regulating hazardous materials transport. Specifically, DOT 
must “protect people and the environment from the risks of hazardous materials transportation.”4 

                                                 
1
 In its risk analysis, the proposed rule did not include accident and spill data from 2014 or from Canada. It is also 

widely understood that spill release information is often underreported by the industry. As such, the projected risk 
of crude by rail accidents in the proposed rulemaking may be lower than actual risk. 



  

3 
 

Through this mandate, PHMSA must “minimize[] the risks to life and property inherent in 
transportation in commerce” and “the consequences of an incident should one occur.”5 While 
costs may be a basis for selecting one safety alternative over another where both would fulfill 
the agency’s safety mandate, the agency’s statutory obligation to protect health and safety is 
paramount. To date, the Department of Transportation’s actions, including the proposed rule 
and other emergency orders, have failed to satisfy this mandate. For example, the agency’s 
recent Safety Advisory 2014-01 amounted to no more than a recommendation to shippers to 
use the safest tank cars in their fleets to the extent feasible. 

 
II. The Proposed Tank Car Phase-Out Yields to Industry Demands to Double the 

Crude Rail Fleet Before Removing Hazardous Tank Cars, and Runs Afoul of 
DOT’s Statutory Duty to Prioritize Public Health and Safety 

The proposed rule lays out a multiple year phase-out by “packing group” that will not 
begin until October 2017 and will run until October 2020.6 Bakken crude, with its much higher 
than average volatility, falls within both packing group I and II, and other crude and ethanol 
generally are packing group II fuels. The proposed packing group phase out encourages 
reducing Bakken volatility to prolong shipment in dangerous DOT 111 tank cars rather than 
removing these unsafe tank cars from crude oil transport immediately. Consequently, under a 
rule that phases out DOT 111 tank cars from packing group and I and II transport service by 
October 2018, DOT would risk approximately 60 oil spills from rail accidents and one to two Lac 
Megantic scale disasters. We understand the railroads and oil industry are urging DOT to slow 
the phase out by an additional six months to one year. The slow phase out also is disconcerting 
in light of Canada’s immediate ban on  5,000 of the most unsafe DOT 111 tank cars after the 
Lac Megantic disaster, and its full phase out of the remaining DOT 111 tank cars for all 
hazardous fuels by May 2017. This creates an incentive for shippers and the railroads to shift 
the hazardous tank cars to the U.S. fleet in the immediate future, meaning a higher 
concentration of the oldest and most unsafe tank cars in use for US-only operations. 

The proposed phase out reflects industry plans to grow the crude oil fleet before 
replacing hazardous tank cars. The current crude oil rail fleet consists of approximately 42,550 
tank cars. The industry plans to build an additional 61,000 tank cars to grow the crude oil fleet 
between now and 2019. However, DOT’s statutory mandate to protect safety and prevent 
incidents requires that new tank cars replace old defective ones before crude-by-rail is 
expanded further.7 Industry’s plan to double the oil tank car fleet without removing the oldest, 
most dangerous cars increases the risk of deadly derailments, spills and fires and is contrary to 
DOT’s statutory duty. 

III. DOT Should Implement a Risk-Based Phase-Out that Prioritizes Public Safety 
Over the Oil Industry’s Desires to Grow the Crude Oil Fleet 

To protect communities across the country and to satisfy its statutory duty, DOT must 
immediately ban the unjacketed DOT 111 tank cars for shipping Bakken crude and other 
Category 3 flammable materials in Packing Groups I, II, and III, and should then adopt a phase 
out based on the risks of puncture and oil spills posed by the tank cars. Unjacketed DOT 111 
tank cars are the most hazardous tank cars on the rails, puncturing in accidents more than half 
the time according to some industry estimates. DOT 111s with jackets and cars without jackets 
built to the 2011 industry CPC-1232 standard cut the risk in half of discharging oil in the event of 
a derailment.  

A risk-based phase-out should call for the following: 
(1) Immediate retirement or retrofit of puncture-prone unjacketed DOT 111 tank cars by 

the end of 2015 at the latest (approximately 22,800 tank cars); 



  

4 
 

(2) Followed by retirement or retrofit of other DOT 111 tank cars (approximately 5,500) 
and unjacketed CPC-1232 tank cars (approximately 14,000) by mid-2016; 

(3) Retrofit of jacketed CPC-1232 tank cars (approximately 4,850) beginning in 2015 
and ending in 2017. 

The industry has stated that 55,400 new tank cars are on order, and at least 37,800 new 
tank cars will be in service by the end of 2015,8 demonstrating it has the capability to ramp up 
new construction that should immediately replace the oldest most unsafe tank cars before 
expanding the fleet to meet the demand of moving more volatile crude through our community 
and others across the country. Industry also represents that it can retrofit 22,000 tank cars each 
year to meet new standards, but the proposed rule does not require retrofits to begin until 
2016.9 The newly built tank cars and retrofits should be directed at replacing unjacketed DOT 
111 tank cars first so that they will be out of crude rail service by the end of 2015 at the very 
latest. 

The PHMSA proposed tank car design option provides the strongest protections to 
public health and safety and would provide the greatest reductions in accident severity. To date, 
DOT’s response to the risks posed by DOT 111 tank cars carrying Bakken crude in the form of a 
voluntary safety advisory and proposed rules that will be completed sometime in 2015 have not 
adequately addressed the “imminent hazards” to public health and safety posed by these 
unsafe tank cars. DOT must act with urgency to protect the public from unsafe tank cars 
carrying volatile hazardous materials.  

DOT also must universally enforce reduced speed limits until the benefits of an improved 
safety rule materialize. Such speed limits must not discriminate based on population given the 
catastrophic crude by rail accidents that have occurred in areas with populations of far less than 
100,000. 

IV. DOT must Ensure Broad Notification of Hazardous Crude by Rail Transported 
through Communities 

In addition, the proposed codification of DOT’s May 2014 emergency order that requires 
the railroads to submit notifications to state emergency response centers to disclose the routes 
and frequency of trains carrying 1 million gallons or more of Bakken crude does not go far 
enough. Broader, coordinated notification is necessary to protect communities like mine who 
have little knowledge, training and resources about crude type and risk and the measures 
needed to minimize risk and damage in the event of an accident. To ensure adequate 
notification, the final rule must: 

(1) Require notification for all trains shipping crude oil or ethanol; 
(2) Lower the 1 million gallon notification threshold to all trains carrying one tank car of 

crude or ethanol, or to all High Hazard Flammable Trains; 
(3) Require notification to the U.S. Department of Transportation so that information is 

subject to the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) and electronic FOIA to foster 
uniform and proactive public access requirements. 

The benefits of knowing the frequency of trains, the types of fuels transported, and 
necessary emergency response measures far exceed the industry’s purported heightened risk 
of terrorism that would result from broadening notification. Contrary to industry’s assertions, it is 
no mystery to the public or anyone living near or observing the rail lines when a crude train 
passes through or sits idling just feet from residences and local businesses. Indeed, the 
knowledge of risks and knowing how to respond is absolutely critical to communities and local 
first responders who are often first at the scene of an incident. 



  

5 
 

We also encourage DOT to extend rail routing guidelines to HHFTs and to provide 
oversight and accountability to industry’s rail routing decisions to ensure that fuels in transport 
are not misclassified and are shipped in containers and on routes that ensure the highest level 
of protection for all exposed communities. 

Relatedly, DOT, through its separate oil spill response rulemaking, must require 
“comprehensive oil spill response plans” for all trains carrying a single tank car of crude or 
ethanol. Such plans should require worst case spill analysis for a discharge of the entire 
contents of a fully loaded unit train. That analysis should be conducted for accidents spilling 
explosive Bakken crude and for accidents spilling tar sand diluted bitumen. In addition, 
response plans must be made subject to federal review and approval with consultation from 
expert federal agencies, such as the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Fish and 
Wildlife Service, and local and state governments. Moreover, given that railroads often carry 
insurance of only $25 million per incident and have gone bankrupt as a result of catastrophic 
accidents forcing victims to shoulder the cost of damages that exceed $1 billion, DOT must 
require that all shippers carry liability insurance that will cover the costs of a worst case scenario 
disaster. 

In sum, it is imperative that the following information be made publicly available: 1) 
hazardous material rail routing, train frequencies and fuel classifications for all trains carrying 
crude or ethanol; 2) comprehensive oil spill response plans for all trains carrying crude and 
ethanol, including modeling of a worst case scenario accident by each railroad; and 3) the 
amount of catastrophic insurance coverage carried by each railroad. 

Thank you again for taking the critical initial steps to improve crude by rail safety. On 
behalf of the residents of the City of Berkeley and millions of Americans directly threatened by 
increased crude by rail transport, we urge you to finalize a rule that immediately phases out 
DOT 111 tank cars from all crude and flammable fuel service and provides for broad and 
coordinated notification and comprehensive oil spill planning.  

Sincerely, 
 
The Berkeley City Council 

 
 
cc:  
Ms. Kathryn Thomson, General Counsel, U.S. Department of Transportation 
Mr. Timothy Butters, Acting Administrator, Pipeline Hazardous Materials Safety Administration  
Ms. Vanessa Allen Sutherland, Chief Counsel, Pipeline Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration 
Ms. Sarah Feinberg, Acting Administrator, Federal Railroad Administration 
Ms. Melissa Porter, Chief Counsel, Federal Railroad Administration   
 
                                                 
1 NTSB, Derailment CN Freight Train: Cherry Valley, Illinois, June 19, 2009, at 75-76 (adopted Feb. 14, 
2012); NTSB Comments on Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, PHMSA 2012-0082, at 1-3 (Dec. 5, 
2013). 
2 79 Fed. Reg. 45,060 (Aug. 1, 2014) 
3 Regulatory Impact Analysis at 4, 7, 9, 23, 35. 
4 Regulatory Impact Analysis at 12. 
5 79 Fed. Reg. at 45,022-23. 
6 79 Fed. Reg. at 45,043 (Table 15). 
7 Regulatory Impact Analysis at 79. 
8 Regulatory Impact Analysis at 79. 
9 Regulatory Impact Analysis at 89-90. 



 



  CONSENT CALENDAR 
CITY COUNCIL  February 24, 2015 
  Linda Maio 

lmaio@cityofberkeley.info · 510.981.7110 · cityofberkeley.info/lindamaio 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Councilmember Linda Maio 
 
SUBJECT: Referral to CEAC Regarding Cigarette Butt Litter 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Request that the Community Environmental Advisory Commission explore ways to 
invest in public outreach and take steps to ensure compliance with Berkeley’s existing 
outdoor smoking ban in order to stem the tide of cigarette butts flowing from our streets 
into the Bay. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Save The Bay and many Berkeley residents are concerned about the impact of toxic 
cigarette butts in our waterways. Save The Bay estimates that over 3 billion cigarette 
butts are littered in the Bay Area each yeari, despite the ban on outdoor smoking. Many 
of these non-biodegradable cigarette butts flow into storm drains and pollute the Bay, 
harming the wildlife. A single cigarette filter in a liter of water is toxic enough to kill half 
of the fish in that water. Lined end to end, the number of cigarette butts littering the Bay 
each year would span the Golden Gate Bridge 9,284 times.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Potential staff time. 
 
CONTACT:  
Councilmember Linda Maio, District 1, 510-981-7110 
 
                                                 
i
 http://www.savesfbay.org/buttfreebay-infographic 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.14



 



 
Max Anderson 
Councilmember District 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From:  Councilmember Max Anderson  
 
Subject: Declaring Mondays to be “Meatless Mondays” in the City of Berkeley 
 
RECCOMMENDATION: 
Adopt a Resolution declaring Mondays to be “Meatless Mondays” in the City of Berkeley 
since the city is committed to the well-being and good health of its citizens and 
dedicated to the preservation of the environment and natural resources. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Berkeley adopted the Berkeley Climate Action Plan on June 2, 2009 with the 
goal of reducing community-wide GHG emissions 33% by 2020.  The Berkeley Climate 
Action Plan states, “Sustainable food systems ... prioritize the consumption of organic 
food over conventional food, and the consumption of vegetables rather than meat. 
Organic food production requires far less fossil fuel inputs than conventional systems, 
which in turn reduces GHG emissions.  Likewise, a meat diet requires twice as much 
energy to produce as a vegetarian diet.” The United Nations recognizes that “Livestock 
are one of the most significant contributors to today's most serious environmental 
problems” and recently wrote, “Eat less meat, poultry, and fish” as a way individuals can 
make a difference to curb climate change.  The National Resources Defense Council 
writes, “Eat less meat.  Either reduce the quantity in your meals and/or eat it less often. 
Be sure to replace it primarily with plant-based foods, not eggs and dairy, as producing 
these animal products causes many of the same environmental problems as meat.”  
Recent studies and reports have demonstrated that we can lower our carbon footprint 
simply by reducing the amount of animal-based foods we eat. 
 
In Alameda County, 28.7 percent of children are overweight or obese.  Those who are 
obese are at increased risk of developing many chronic diseases, including heart 
disease, stroke, high blood pressure, diabetes, arthritis, and many types of cancer.  The 
economic costs associated with obesity in Alameda County are estimated at $1 billion.  
 
The Association of Nutrition and Dietetics recognizes that reduced meat consumption 
decreases the risk of various health problems, stating, "Scientific data suggests positive 
relationships between a vegetarian diet and reduced risk for several chronic 
degenerative diseases and conditions, including obesity, hypertension, diabetes mellitus 
and some types of cancer;"

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.15



 

The EPIC-PANACEA Study published in 2010 by the American Society for Nutrition 
concluded, “…a decrease in meat consumption may improve weight management;”. 
 
According to its CEO Nancy Brown, “The American Heart Association recognizes the 
role of plant-based foods in a healthy dietary pattern…” and says we can “Use Meatless 
Mondays as another opportunity to eat a well-balanced diet.” 
 
Kaiser Permanente writes “If you find you cannot do a plant-based diet 100 percent of 
the time, then aim for 80 percent. Any movement toward more plants and fewer animal 
products can help improve your health;” 
 
Nearly all animals that are raised for food in the U.S. are confined on massive factory 
farms, and The Humane Society of the United States reports that taking a weekly 
holiday from meat and enjoying more delicious plant-based meals could spare many 
animals from severe suffering.  
 
Numerous schools, colleges, and universities in California and nationwide have 
implemented Meatless Mondays in their cafeterias, including Oakland Unified School 
District, California State University – East Bay, Piedmont Unified School District and 
Mills College. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
NONE 
 
CONTACT: 
Councilmember Max Anderson Council District 3  510 981-7130 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S. 
 

DECLARING MONDAYS TO BE "MEATLESS MONDAYS" IN THE CITY OF 
BERKELEY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is dedicated to the preservation of the environment, 
natural resources and is committed to the well-being and good health of its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley adopted the Berkeley Climate Action Plan on June 2, 
2009 with the goal of reducing community-wide GHG emissions 33% by 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, as the Berkeley Climate Action Plan states, “Sustainable food systems ... 
prioritize the consumption of organic food over conventional food, and the consumption 
of vegetables rather than meat. Organic food production requires far less fossil fuel 
inputs than conventional systems, which in turn reduces GHG emissions. Likewise, a 
meat diet requires twice as much energy to produce as a vegetarian diet”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the United Nations recognizes that “Livestock are one of the most 
significant contributors to today's most serious environmental problems” and recently 
wrote, “Eat less meat, poultry, and fish” as a way individuals can make a difference to 
curb climate change; and 

 
WHEREAS, the National Resources Defense Council writes, “Eat less meat. Either 
reduce the quantity in your meals and/or eat it less often. Be sure to replace it primarily 
with plant-based foods, not eggs and dairy, as producing these animal products causes 
many of the same environmental problems as meat.”; and 
 
WHEREAS, recent studies and reports have demonstrated that we can lower our 
carbon footprint simply by reducing the amount of animal-based foods we eat; and 
 
WHEREAS, in Alameda County, 28.7 percent of children are overweight or obese. 
Those who are obese are at increased risk of developing many chronic diseases, 
including heart disease, stroke, high blood pressure, diabetes, arthritis, and many types 
of cancer and the economic costs associated with obesity in Alameda County are 
estimated at $1 billion; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Association of Nutrition and Dietetics recognizes that reduced meat 
consumption decreases the risk of various health problems, stating, "Scientific data 
suggests positive relationships between a vegetarian diet and reduced risk for several 
chronic degenerative diseases and conditions, including obesity, hypertension, diabetes 
mellitus and some types of cancer";and 
 
WHEREAS, the EPIC-PANACEA Study published in 2010 by the American Society for 
Nutrition concluded, “…a decrease in meat consumption may improve weight 
management;” and 
 



 

WHEREAS, according to its CEO Nancy Brown, “The American Heart Association 
recognizes the role of plant-based foods in a healthy dietary pattern…” and says we can 
“Use Meatless Mondays as another opportunity to eat a well-balanced diet;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Kaiser Permanente writes “If you find you cannot do a plant-based diet 100 
percent of the time, then aim for 80 percent. Any movement toward more plants and 
fewer animal products can help improve your health;” and  
 
WHEREAS, nearly all animals who are raised for food in the U.S. are confined on 
massive factory farms, and The Humane Society of the United States reports that taking 
a weekly holiday from meat and enjoying more delicious plant-based meals could spare 
many animals from severe suffering; and 
 
WHEREAS, numerous schools, colleges, and universities in California and nationwide 
have implemented Meatless Mondays in their cafeterias, including Oakland Unified 
School District, California State University – East Bay, Piedmont Unified School District,  
Mills College, and more. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council hereby declares all Mondays as "Meatless Mondays" in support of 
comprehensive sustainability efforts as well as to further encourage residents to eat a 
more varied plant-based diet to protect their health, protect animals, and protect the 
environment, and to encourage restaurants, grocery stores, and schools to offer a 
greater variety of healthier and more sustainable plant-based options. 



 
Max Anderson 
Councilmember District 3 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7130 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7133  
E-Mail: manderson@cityofberkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From: Councilmember Max Anderson, District 3 
 Councilmember Darryl Moore, District 2 
 
Subject: Phase II: Implementation of City of Berkeley: Review of Personnel Policies 

and Procedures Top-Line Report 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The City should consider implementing the recommendations in the City of Berkeley: 
Review of Personnel Policies and Procedures Top-Line Report: 

A. Department Audits 

The top-line report recommends audits of the Human Resources and Equal 
Employment Opportunity (EEO) Department. Upon completion of the Human Resources 
and EEO Department audits, the findings as well as the complaints within the top-line 
report will define the type of best management practices that should be implemented. In 
particular, consistent application of personnel rules by the Human Resources 
Department must be ensured in order to prevent perceived unfairness during the hiring 
and promotion process. Uniform and transparent standards applied in the hiring and 
promotion process must be implemented and enforced. The Human Resources 
Department should also strictly enforce the enhanced nepotism policy that is proposed 
in the top-line report. 

The top-line report also shows that City employees felt that their complaints filed with 
the EEO office were not properly handled. In order to create greater transparency in the 
resolution of EEO complaints and engender confidence in the EEO office, the City 
should also consider establishing uniform standards to resolve EEO complaints and 
produce EEO reports.  

B. Inventory of EEO Complaints 

Many interviewees indicated that they had filed EEO complaints that were either 
unresolved or resolved unsatisfactory. The number of EEO complaints that have been 
filed, investigated, and resolved and the extent of documentation and evidence of 
alleged misconduct will be assessed and inventoried. The assessment will also allow for 
the identification of areas that need improvement, and potentially an estimate of how 
many EEO complaints are resolved successfully or satisfactory.

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.16



 

 

C. Whistle Blowing Policy 

The EEO complaint process must be supplemented with a whistle blowing policy to 
protect City employees who report misconduct from retaliation and harassment. The 
enforcement of the whistle blowing policy is imperative due to the pervasive fear of 
retaliation and harassment by City supervisors and managers. The lack of protection of 
whistle blowers may have exacerbated the underreporting of misconduct that has 
reportedly occurred over the last 30 years. The assessment will allow for a definition of 
the scope of the policy. 

D. Applicant and Employee Reporting 

The top-line report calls of reinstatement of several EEO Reports: 

 Applicant Flow Report: To identify the number, gender, race, and ethnicity of 
applicants, test participants, and successful candidates in order to evaluate the 
extent to which underutilized classifications or job groups may be impacted by 
recruitment and selection procedures or practices. 

 Quarterly and Year End Employee Turnover Report: To identify new hires, 
promotions, transfers, demotions, and terminations by job classification, race, 
ethnicity, gender, department, and division in order to identify and evaluate any 
indicators of disproportionate hiring, promotion, or retention practices. 

 Quarterly and Year End EEO Complaint Report: To track EEO related complaints 
and grievances by issue, job classification, department, and resolution in order to 
identify and evaluate the need for review or revision of any policies, practices, 
procedures, or activities to enhance EEO effectiveness. 

 Quarterly and Year End Training Report: To track training opportunities and 
participation in order to assure non-discrimination in training practices. 

Suspension of reports diminished transparency in the hiring, promotion, transfer, 
demotion, and termination of City employees. The assessment will allow for a review of 
the current reports and also identify enhancements to the content and presentation of 
the required data.   

E. Nepotism Policy 

An anti-nepotism policy should be included in the Personnel Rules. The current policy, 
Berkeley Administrative Regulation 2.12: Employment of Near Relatives, is not included 
in the Personnel Rules. The policy will also be expanded and include rules to ensure 
enforcement of the policy. The policy should be applied to all City departments, 
including the Rent Board and Library, and cover a City employee’s family, near-family, 
friends, and acquaintances. The vast majority of nepotism observed by the 
complainants entailed the preferential hiring and promotion of friends, former co-
workers, or former employees. Each potential hire should have to disclose if they have 
personal ties with City supervisors, managers, or staff, as part of the application 
process. 



 

 

F. Additional Staffing Needs of the Human Resources and EEO Departments 

The Human Resources and EEO Department audits may also reveal a need to expand 
the body of skilled staff members who will be responsible for enforcing all 
recommendations of the Phase II project. The required skills and subject-matter 
expertise will be determined based on the findings of the audits. The duties and 
responsibilities will also be outlined in order to maximize the utility of the current staff 
and any proposed staff augmentation. 

G. Improvements of Communication Methods 

Better communication channels between the City and City employees and potential new 
hires will be established to address concerns about recruitment, selection and retention 
of new employees. The communication improvements would address the selection of 
media to publicize open positions, the length of time the open positions are advertised, 
and the content of the notices. The assessment will also consider options to make the 
communication more transparent and will include an examination of the schedules and 
time periods for submitting applications, taking exams, and participating in in-person 
interviews. The number of one-on-one and group interviews as well as the selection of 
interview panel members will be assessed. Standards for informing applicants of the 
City’s hiring decisions will be a component of the assessment.   

H. Revisions of the Personnel Rules 

Additional revisions of the Personnel Rules may be necessary upon closer examination 
of the Human Resources and EEO Departments. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2012, the National Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP) 
collected complaints by former and current City of Berkeley (City) employees. Mason 
Tillman Associates, Ltd. (Mason Tillman) was retained by the City of Berkeley to review 
the City’s Personnel Rules and interview 20 complainants. Mason Tillman reviewed the 
City’s Personnel Rules, Title 4 of the Berkeley Municipal Code, and Ordinance No. 
2342-N.S and conducted the 20 interviews in 2013 and 2014. Mason Tillman issued a 
report in May 2014 detailing the findings of the interviews and examination of the 
Personnel Rules, entitled City of Berkeley: Review of Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Top-Line Report. The interviews revealed perceived unfairness in the hiring 
and promotion process by inconsistently applying the Personnel Rules and lack of 
transparency in the handling of EEO complaints.  
 
On October 7, 2014, the Berkeley City Council held a special session to discuss the 
report and hear public comments. Mason Tillman presented the top-line report findings 
to the City Council. The City Council unanimously supported taking additional steps to 
address the concerns of the complainants. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
TBD. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Max Anderson, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130 



 



 

Jesse Arreguín 
Councilmember, District 4 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7140 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7144 
E-Mail: jarreguin@CityofBerkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
      February 24, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From: Councilmember Jesse Arreguín 
Subject: City Co-Sponsorship of the Persian New Year Festival 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt a Resolution approving city co-sponsorship of the Persian New Year Festival that 
will take place on Tuesday, March 17, 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at the Berkeley Persian Center on 2029 Durant Avenue 
between Shattuck and Milvia Streets, the Persian Center will host a Chahar-Shanbeh 
Souri celebration to commemorate the new year.  

Chahar-Shanbeh Souri in Farsi means “Eve of Wednesday” because the New Year 
festival is always held on the last Tuesday of winter.  This festival includes the ritual of 
jumping over a bonfire which has been handed down since ancient Zoroastrian times.  

This annual event is designed to not only help strengthen the sense of identity and 
integrity of all Iranians and Iranian descendents but to educate and celebrate the Iranian 
culture with the larger community. This free, family-friendly event is a wonderful 
community building experience. It helps promote greater understanding of the Iranian 
culture but also celebrates the rich diversity of our community.  
 
The City of Berkeley has in the past provided needed funding to help make this event 
happen. However, no city funding was approved for the event this year, making it 
difficult for the Persian Center to help organize this event. The purpose of retroactive 
approval of City co-sponsorship is to allow the organizers to take advantage of certain 
city services provided to city sponsored events, to help defray costs of this important 
community celebration.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION: 
Unknown. 

CONTACT PERSON: 
Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember, District 4 510-981-7140  
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.17



RESOLUTION NO.    –N.S. 
 

CO-SPONSORING THE PERSIAN NEW YEAR FESTIVAL TO BE HELD ON 
MARCH 17, 2015 

 
WHEREAS, on Tuesday, March 17, 2015 on Durant Avenue between Shattuck and 
Milvia Streets, the Persian Center will host a Chahar-Shanbeh Souri celebration to 
commemorate the new year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chahar-Shanbeh Souri in Farsi means “Eve of Wednesday” because the 
New Year festival is always held on the last Tuesday of winter. This festival includes the 
ritual of jumping over a bonfire which has been handed down since ancient Zoroastrian 
times; and 
 
WHEREAS, this annual event is designed to not only help strengthen the sense of 
identity and integrity of all Iranians and Iranian descendents but to educate and 
celebrate the Iranian culture with the larger community. It helps promote greater 
understanding of the Iranian culture but also celebrates the rich diversity of our 
community.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City of Berkeley hereby co-sponsors the Persian Center’s Persian New Year Festival 
and that Persian Center has permission to use the City’s name and logo in the event’s 
promotional materials and signage naming the City of Berkeley as a co-sponsor solely 
for the purpose of the City indicating its endorsement of the event. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this co-sponsorship does not: (1) authorize financial 
support, whether in the form of fee waivers, a grant or provision of City services for free; 
(2) constitute the acceptance of any liability, management, or control on the part of the 
City for or over the Persian New Year Festival; or (3) constitute regulatory approval of 
the Persian New Year Festival. 



 
Berkeley City Council 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 24, 2015 

 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
  
From: Councilmember Laurie Capitelli, Councilmember Jesse Arreguin, and 

Councilmember Lori Droste 
 
Subject: Community Emergency Response Training for Multi-unit Residential 

Buildings and Emergency Cache Program Tailored to the Needs of Large 
Multi-unit Residential Buildings 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refer to the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, the Housing Advisory Commission, 
and the Berkeley Fire Department Office of Emergency Services to design a pilot 
Community Emergency Response Training curriculum specifically for multi-unit 
residential buildings and to design an emergency cache program tailored to the needs 
of large multi-unit residential buildings as outlined in the background material below. 
Both proposed pilots should be evaluated after 2 years. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Berkeley Fire Department's Office of Emergency Services (OES) currently 
implements disaster and preparedness response, outreach and education. The 
programs they oversee are crucial to maintaining city-wide safety plans for disasters 
such as earthquakes or fires that threaten broad segments of Berkeley residents. Since 
it is likely that government resources will not be available in the immediate aftermath of 
a widespread disaster such as a major earthquake on the North Hayward Fault, and 
with reduced efficacy for several days afterward, OES provides both free Community 
Emergency Response Training classes (CERT) taught by Fire Department personnel as 
well as free caches of emergency supplies (including such items as radios, flashlights, 
hammers, hoses, nozzles, gloves, hardhats, masks) through the Community 
Emergency Supply Program (CESP). A limited number of neighborhoods and 
organizations may apply for caches. Cache recipients are chosen with the aim of 
dispersing them generally throughout the city. Residents have to have completed a 
requisite set of CERT classes. 
 
Previously the Fire Department has expressed strong interest in increasing disaster 
prep awareness among multi-unit tenants and attracting their participation in both the 
CERT and CESP programs. Most Berkeley residents are tenants. Multi-unit housing, 
with its aging infrastructure and multifloor layout, is generally much more vulnerable to 
fire and earthquake disaster. (Additionally, the dense housing near downtown and the 
UC campus is severely underrepresented by caches). 
 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.18



CERT for Multi-unit Residential Buildings and Emergency Cache Program CONSENT CALENDAR 
Tailored to the Needs of Large Multi-unit Residential Buildings   February 24, 2015  

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    

We need caches – and resident participation in cache use and maintenance – within 
reasonable reach of all Berkeley residents. 
 
Proposal: Pilot Tenant & Property Manager Education Program 
We believe that the residents of Berkeley will be well served by widespread training in 
the basics of disaster response among tenants and owners of multi-unit housing. We 
also believe that tenants will participate in a basic disaster training program if it is well 
advertised. (A 2009 Tenant Survey by the Berkeley Rent Board showed that only one of 
every 12 tenants reported direct knowledge of disaster preparedness technique or knew 
someone with such knowledge; among long-term tenants, one out of seven reported 
that kind of familiarity.)  
 
The Berkeley Fire Department (BFD) believes that a focused, two-hour class will greatly 
increase understanding of disaster response techniques and will help save the lives of 
Berkeley residents in the event of such a disaster. They also believe that there is 
enough interest in providing such training that non-Fire Department volunteer personnel 
will step forward to lead that training. The BFD is willing to train these volunteers. 
 
These special two-hour classes would cover basic disaster preparedness as well as 
include information on multi-unit specific issues like limited storage space for supplies, 
renters insurance, & emergency exit strategies for disabled residents. (Disabled tenants 
who cannot easily negotiate stairs in the event that fire or lack of electricity in an 
earthquake leaves elevators unusable are at significant risk.) The class may eventually 
be required for all managers of 16-unit and larger buildings, which are required to have 
onsite managers for whom such classes would be especially pertinent; there are 
approximately 300 such buildings in Berkeley. 
 
Proposal: Pilot Cache Program 
Measure GG funds exist to fund more caches, which cost approximately $4,000 each.  
Staff should devise a modified cache specifically for large multi-unit housing, which has 
unique needs, and providing funding for three of them per year for each of two years of 
a pilot program.  
 
Several owners of 16-unit plus buildings have expressed a willingness to explore cache 
acquisition. It makes the most sense to establish the first caches in larger buildings, 
both because of the number of tenants served and because such buildings can easily 
function as community centers that can also serve other nearby residents in the event of 
disaster; we recommend limiting the pilot program to these buildings.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Cost of the emergency cache supplies and storage containers is approximate 
$8,000 per year for two years.  

 Administration costs to schedule classes, obtain venues, schedule instructors, 
and keep attendance records for classes. 

 Staff time for BFD and Rent Board to collaborate on curriculum development. 



 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    

 Cost of class-space rental from City facilities. 
 Potential cost of overtime for BFD instructors if they are utilized in place of 

volunteers. 
 Cost of staff time to train new trainers if the “train the trainer” model is used. 

 
The Rent Board’s Executive Director has indicated that he believes in-kind 
administrative costs can be shared between his staff and City staff, and will be minimal. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli, District 5    510-981-7150 
Councilmember Jesse Arreguin, District 4 510-981-7140 
Councilmember Lori Droste, District 8  510-981-7180 



 



 
Susan Wengraf 
Councilmember District 6 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmember Susan Wengraf 

Subject: Urging California Elected Officials to Reform Proposition 13 and Close the 
Commercial Property Loophole 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution urging California elected officials to reform Proposition 13 and close 
the commercial property loophole and send copies of the signed resolution to the 
appropriate government representatives, including Assemblymember Thurmond, 
Senator Loni Hancock, Congressmember Barbara Lee, US Senator Dianne Feinstein, 
US Senator Barbara Boxer. 

BACKGROUND 
In June 2014, the Berkeley City Council adopted a resolution in support of Assembly Bill 
2372 which proposed to update the definition of “ownership” and close the loophole that 
has allowed commercial property transactions to evade tax reassessment. 
Unfortunately, AB 2372 died in the legislature and has not been re-introduced. 

The purpose of this item is to reaffirm the City of Berkeley’s commitment to amend 
Proposition 13 and to close the commercial property loophole. 

In 1978, many California voters passed Proposition 13 in order to protect residents from 
being priced out of their homes from rising property taxes.  Prior to Proposition 13, there 
was no limit on increases in property tax rates and property value assessment charges.  
This meant that when properties were reassessed yearly at significantly higher rates, 
property tax bills had to increase accordingly.  Propositions 13 reduced property taxes 
by freezing property values at the 1975 value and prohibiting a reassessment exceeding 
a 2% inflation factor per year.  Prop 13 also prohibited a reassessment of a new base 
year value except in cases of change in ownership or completion of new construction. 

Initially, Prop 13 helped reduce property taxes for both residential and commercial 
property owner.  However, since commercial properties do not frequently experience 
changes in ownership, they are rarely reassessed.  Furthermore, the law allows 
business to avoid property value reassessment if no one acquires a majority stake in a 
company that owns the property.  Large corporations can therefore take advantage of 
this condition by guaranteeing that no one investor owns more than 49% control of a 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.19



 
]  
  

Page 2 

company at any time, thus ensuring that there is no technical change in ownership to 
trigger a reassessment of property values.   

Because corporations have exploited these loopholes, the tax burden has slowly shifted 
from businesses to homeowners.  In California, residential property owners now pay 
72% of the property taxes, and commercial property owners only pay 28%, heavily 
benefitting large corporations at the expense of everyday homeowners and working 
families. 

Prop 13 has forced the state to rely less on property taxes as a stable source of 
revenue and more on volatile sources like income taxes and sales taxes causing major 
deficits and requiring the state to cut funding from many vital services.   

According to an analysis of data provided by the California Board of Equalization, 
closing the loopholes through a regular reassessment of non-residential property would 
generate at least $6 billion in additional revenue for the state of California.  Requiring a 
regular reassessment of commercial property while maintaining Proposition 13 
protections for residential property and business owners would also shift the tax burden 
from homeowners, renters, and working families to large corporations and commercial 
landlords. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY:  
NA 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Councilmember Susan Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160 
 

Attachments:  
1: Resolution 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S. 
 
URGING CALIFORNIA ELECTED OFFICIALS TO REFORM PROPOSITION 13 AND 

CLOSE THE COMMERCIAL LOOPHOLE 
 
WHEREAS, voters in the State of California approved Proposition 13 in 1978; and 
 
WHEREAS, Proposition 13 created limits on the property taxes paid by residential and 
commercial properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, loopholes in Proposition 13 has shifted the tax burden away from 
commercial properties to residential properties, negatively impacting everyday 
homeowners and working families; and 
 
WHEREAS, Proposition 13 is anti-competitive in that new  businesses must pay fair 
market value for their property, while commercial property owners who have owned 
their property for a longer time pay disproportionately lower property tax rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of California continues to face chronic budget shortfalls, in large 
part because of Proposition 13; and 
 
WHEREAS, regularly reassessing non-residential property would, according to data 
provided by the California Board of Equalization, generate at least $6 billion in additional 
revenue for California, and shift the tax burden from homeowners and working families 
to corporations and commercial landholders; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley City Council supports commercial property tax reform that will 
require non-residential commercial properties to be reassessed regularly while 
maintaining Proposition 13 protections for residential property and small business 
owners. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council hereby urges California elected officials to reform Proposition 13 and close the 
commercial property loophole. 



 



 
Lori Droste 
Councilmember District 8 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7180 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 
E-Mail: ldroste@cityofberkeley.info  

CONSENT CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmember Droste 

Subject: Business License Tax Renewal Procedure 

RECOMMENDATION 
Refer to the City Manager to draft an amendment to the Berkeley Municipal Code Title 9 
Chapter 9.04.065 to grant a grace period for enforcement of business license 
requirements for contractors seeking building permits through March 31 of each year, 
as long as the contractor had an active business license the previous year.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Staff time 

BACKGROUND 
Currently business licenses are issued on January 1 of each year, and expire 
December 31 of the same year. In order to get a building permit, business licenses 
need to be current. At the beginning of the year between the time a license expires and 
a new license is processed, building permits cannot be obtained by contractors because 
they do not have an active license. To prevent this from happening, business licenses 
from the previous year should be extended through March 31 to allow new licenses to 
issued and not delay building permit issuance.  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
No impact 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
Councilmember Lori Droste Council, District 8, 510-981-7180 
 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.20



 



 
Peace and Justice Commission 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

ACTION CALENDAR 
February 24, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Peace & Justice Commission 

Submitted by:  Noah Sochet, Chairperson, Peace & Justice Commission 

Subject: Establishing a Two Year Moratorium on Drones in Berkeley 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution adopting a two year moratorium on drones in Berkeley. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
Unknown. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on June 9, 2014, the Peace and Justice Commission 
approved a recommendation that the City Council adopt a Resolution establishing a two 
year moratorium on Drones in Berkeley. 

M/S/C:   (/Meola/Bohn) 
Ayes:   Bohn, Grace (temporary appointee), Kenin, Lippman, Meola, Nicely 
Noes:  Peirotes 
Abstain: None.   
Absent: Maran (excused), Sochet (excused) 

BACKGROUND 
On December 18, 2012, the Berkeley City Council reviewed a resolution submitted to it 
by the Berkeley Peace and Justice Commission to "Proclaim Berkeley a No Drone Zone 
and Enact an Ordinance to that Effect."1  The Council referred the issue of drones, or 
unmanned aerial vehicles, in Berkeley back to the Peace and Justice Commission, the 
Berkeley Police Review Commission, and the Berkeley Disaster and Fire Commission 
for further review and study, and asked them to report back to Council for further 
consideration of the issues and a Council Workshop.  
 
                                            
1 "Proclaim Berkeley a No Drone Zone and Enact an Ordinance to That Effect." City of Berkeley. N.p., 
n.d. Web. <http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/Clerk/City_Council/2012/12Dec/Documents/2012-12-
18_Item_05_Proclaim_Berkeley_a_No_Drone.aspx>. 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
4b.22



Establishing a Two Year Moratorium on Drones in Berkeley ACTION CALENDAR 
 February 24, 2015 

Council asked those commissions to review a proposal to permit police use of drones 
upon approval of City Manager, or upon approval of the Chief of Police in emergency 
situations when the City Manager isn't available, in the following circumstances:  
 

1) In the case of a disaster; 
2) To assist in locating missing persons; 
3) To assist in rescue efforts; 
4) To assist in police pursuit of known suspects who have committed serious 

or violent crimes. 
 
Since that time, four cities [Charlottesville, Virginia, St. Bonifacius, Minnesota, Evanston 
Illinois, and Iowa City, Iowa] have banned drones. Other cities and at least thirty-one 
states are considering similar legislation. In Seattle, Washington, in February, 2013, 
Mayor Mike McGinn ordered the Seattle Police Department to abandon its plan to use 
drones after residents and privacy advocates protested and McGinn said the two drones 
purchased by the city with federal funds would be returned to their vendors. 
 
On May 1, 2013, the Peace and Justice Commission and the Police Review 
Commission jointly held a "Town Hall on Drones: Informing Policy in Berkeley." The 
Town Hall meeting provided opportunities for individuals and organizations to address 
the Commissions and the public on various aspects of drone usage.  The Town Hall 
focused on: 
 

1) Technical Aspects of and Limitations of Drones 
2) Public Safety (what might drones be good for?)  
3) Civil Liberties Concerns; and  
4) Moral and Political Consequences of Drones. 

 
Representatives of the following organizations made presentations to the Commissions: 
American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU), the Electronic Frontier Foundation (EFF), the 
Association for Unmanned Vehicle Systems International (AUVSI), Alameda County 
Against Drones (ACAD), the Bill of Rights Defense Committee (BORDC), Berkeley 
Copwatch, and Clinical Professor Jennifer Urban from the University of 
California School of Law’s Technology & Public Policy Clinic.  Unfortunately, neither the 
Berkeley Police Department (BPD) nor the Berkeley Fire Department (BFD) accepted 
invitations to send their representatives to participate in any way in the Town Hall on 
Drones.  An invitation for co-sponsorship was also extended to the Berkeley Disaster 
and Fire Safety Commission but was declined.  
 
Each presenter answered questions from Commissioners, and ample time was devoted 
to public comment.  Of all of the presenters, only the presenter from AUVSI, a drone 
industry advocacy and trade group, favored the use of drones in Berkeley. Of the 
approximately twenty comments from the public, eighteen speakers expressed strong 



Establishing a Two Year Moratorium on Drones in Berkeley ACTION CALENDAR 
 February 24, 2015 

opposition to the use of drones in Berkeley, while two expressed willingness to see 
drones used in emergency situations with appropriate safeguards.  One person 
expressed a desire for Berkeley to use a drone to search for his granddaughter in an 
emergency situation and another person expressed his desire for "some use of drones.”  
Many speakers urged commissioners to pursue a “No Drone Zone” policy in Berkeley. 
 
On April 29, 2014, the City Council convened a work session on a Drone Policy in the 
City of Berkeley.  Following the work session, the matter was referred to the Council 
Agenda Committee, where no additional action has taken place.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
A moratorium on drones will eliminate the heightened risk of negative environmental 
effects associated with the unregulated use of drones, including potential mid-air 
collisions with other such objects and wildlife and inadvertent crash landings of such 
unmanned vehicles. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Peace and Justice Commission urges the Berkeley City Council to pass a two year 
moratorium on drones in Berkeley pending the development of a comprehensive city-
wide approach restricting the use of drones.  
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
A range of approaches to addressing the constitutional and other issues raised by 
drones was considered.  Pending the development of a comprehensive city-wide 
approach, as originally proposed by the Commission on December 18, 2012, other 
possible partial limitations on drones was considered.  Based on the Commission’s 
analysis, including input provided at the public forum, partial and limited restrictions on 
drones were deemed insufficient in addressing the privacy and other constitutional 
issues posed by drones. 

CITY MANAGER 
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of the 
Commission’s Report.  

CONTACT PERSON 
Bob Meola, Commissioner, Peace & Justice Commission, (510) 644-1102 
Eric Brenman, Secretary, Peace & Justice Commission, (510) 981-5114 

Attachments:  
1. Resolution  
2. Letter regarding Drone Policy



 

 

RESOLUTION  NO.        –N.S. 
 

TWO YEAR MORATORIUM ON DRONES IN BERKELEY 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley Peace and Justice Commission advises the City Council on 
all matters relating to the City of Berkeley’s role in issues of peace and social justice 
(Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Chapter 3.68.070); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley City Council is not yet ready to implement a comprehensive 
policy on drones in Berkeley, including an ordinance addressing the use of drones in 
Berkeley; and 

WHEREAS, at Council’s request, the Peace and Justice Commission and the Police 
Review Commission researched drone policy, including holding a community forum, 
and collected expert and community testimonies from various perspectives, noting a 
strong preference for a No Drone Zone and caution and regulation before the use of 
drones is allowed; and 

WHEREAS, the rapid implementation of drone technology throughout the United States 
poses a serious threat to the privacy and constitutional rights of the American people, 
including the residents of Berkeley; and 

WHEREAS, the federal government and the State of California have not yet provided 
reasonable legal restrictions on the use of public or private drones within the United 
States; and 

WHEREAS, police departments throughout the country have begun implementing drone 
technology absent any guidance or guidelines from law makers. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council encourages our legislative representatives to propose a two year moratorium on 
drones in the state of California. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley calls on the 
United States Congress and the legislature of the State of California to adopt legislation 
prohibiting the use of drones in criminal investigations without a valid court warrant 
prompted by a showing of probable cause, prohibiting information obtained from the 
domestic use of drones from being introduced into a Federal or State court, and 
precluding the domestic use of drones equipped with anti-personnel devices, including 
any projectile, chemical, electrical, directed-energy (visible or invisible), or other device 
designed to harm, incapacitate, or otherwise negatively impact a human being. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Berkeley and its agencies will refrain, for 
two years, from purchasing drones or entering into contracts to lease or borrow drones 
or receiving drones as gifts or using drones. 



Attachment 2 
 

 

Letter to Berkeley City Council and the Council Agenda Committee re Drone 
Policy 

 
Dear Berkeley City Council Agenda Committee: 
 
The Peace and Justice Commission wishes to remind you that we are looking forward 
to the establishment of a process to craft a comprehensive Berkeley Policy on Drones. 
The recommendation we submitted for Council Action has not been placed on the City 
Council Agenda prior to or following the Council Workshop on Drones.    
 
Our original recommendation was on the Council agenda on December 18th, 2012.  We 
have a subcommittee on drones.  We held our Town Hall on Drones on May 1, 2013.  
The Council Workshop on Drones was held on April 29, 2014 and no specific timeline 
was given for the continuation of hearing our recommendation on a City Council Agenda 
Action Calendar or establishing a Council sub-committee to further research a policy on 
drones for the City of Berkeley.    
 
Given the fact that it will take an undeclared and unknown amount of time before 
Council does further work on a Drone Policy for Berkeley and given the fact that it is and 
will be easier to regulate drones before they fill Berkeley’s skies than after they are 
already in Berkeley’s skies, we are submitting an additional recommendation to be 
utilized, in the meantime, while Berkeley studies the subject in greater depth, in order to 
secure the safeguards for civil liberties and safety that were expressed at the City 
Council Workshop on Drones.   
 
Our temporary solution, while the details are worked out by Council for a more 
comprehensive Policy on Drones, is to implement a Two Year Moratorium on Drones in 
Berkeley [as has been done in other cities].  Our “Resolution Proposing a Two Year 
Moratorium on Drones in Berkeley” accompanies this letter.  Also, provided at this link, 
http://warisacrime.org/resolutions are bans on drones legislated by other cities and 
states. 
 
Please put this new Resolution on an upcoming City Council Agenda and let us know 
what steps the Council is taking to craft a more comprehensive and permanent policy 
on drones. 
 
Thank you for your attention to the matter of a Drone Policy in Berkeley. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Berkeley Peace and Justice Commission 
cc:  Berkeley City Council  

http://warisacrime.org/resolutions


 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Upcoming Workshops 

Scheduled Dates 
 

February 10 Zero Waste Franchise Study 

February 24 Budget: Mid-Year Update/Long Term Obligations 

March 10 Crime Report 

March 17 Sewer Rate Process 

March 24 Facilities Assessment/Public Works & Parks Capital Improvement 

April 7 Planning Commission Work Plan 

April 28 Community Agency Funding 

May 12 Budget: FY 2016-2017 Proposed 

May 26 OED Update 

June 9 Resilience Strategies 

Unscheduled Workshops 

1. Mental Health Commission Referral - Crisis Response 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5a



 
 
 

 

City Council Referrals to the Agenda Committee 

1. Vacancy Registration Fee (October 21, 2014) 

2. “Good Government” Package (October 28, 2014) 

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5b



Address Board/
Commission

Appeal Period 
Ends 

 Determination 
on Appeal 
Submitted

Public
Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision
809 Page St (construct new single-family residence) ZAB 2/17/2015
122 Avenida Dr (modify approved plans for single family dwelling) ZAB 2/17/2015

Appeals Submitted 

Public Hearings Scheduled
2201-2205 Blake St (deny use permit - Bartlett Houses) ZAB 2/10/2015
2204 Dwight Way (deny use permit to construct new duplex) ZAB 2/10/2015
2135 Roosevelt Ave (single family residence) ZAB 3/24/2015
524 Cragmont Ave (rebuild home destroyed by fire) ZAB TBD

Remanded to ZAB or LPC

*90 day deadline
Notes

Last Updated: 2/4/15

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
5c



 


	02-09 Agenda.pdf
	01-26 Minutes
	Draft 02-24 Worksession Agenda
	Draft 02-24 Agenda
	Draft Item 12 Official City Sponsor
	Draft Item 13 Strengthening Proposed
	Draft Item 14 Referral to CEAC
	Draft Item 15 Declaring Mondays
	Draft Item 16 Phase II Implementation
	Draft Item 17 City Co-Sponsorship
	Draft Item 18 Community Emergency
	Draft Item 19 Urging California Elected
	Draft Item 20 Business License Tax
	Draft Item 22 Establishing a Two Year
	Att 5a - Upcoming Workshops
	Att 5b - Council Referrals
	Att 5c - Land Use Calendar



